
Meeting Minutes 
State College Borough Council 

Regular Meeting 
April 16, 2012 

 
 

The State College Borough Council met in a regular meeting on Monday, April 16, 2012, in the State College 
Municipal Building, 243 South Allen Street, State College, PA.  Mayor Goreham called the meeting to order at 
7:30 p.m. 
 
Present: Elizabeth Goreham, Mayor 

 Donald M. Hahn, President of Council 
 Thomas E. Daubert 
 Catherine G. Dauler 
 Ronald L. Filippelli 
 Sarah Klinetob 
 Peter Morris 
 James L. Rosenberger 

  
Also present:  Thomas J. Fountaine, Borough Manager; Terry J. Williams, Borough Solicitor; Carl R. Hess, 
Planning Director; Thomas R. King, Chief of Police; Mark A. Whitfield, Director of Public Works; Roger Dunlap, 
Assistant Borough Manager; Charles DeBow, Parking Manager; Brendan McNally, UPUA Student 
Representative; Courtney Hayden, Communications & Grants Coordinator, and numerous residents and 
members of the media. 
 
Public Hour – Hearing of Citizens 
 
Introduction of UPUA Government Affairs Chair – Mayor Goreham introduced Rachel Franceschino, the new 
UPUA Government Affairs Chair.  Ms. Franceschino said she is a sophomore at Penn State who grew up in 
Yardley, PA and is very interested in working with local and state government officials.     
 
Bicycle Awareness Month Proclamation – Mayor Goreham presented representatives from the Centre Region 
Bicycle Coalition with a proclamation declaring May as Bicycle Awareness Month and designated May 18th as 
Bike to Work Day in State College.  Paul Rito, President of the Bicycle Coalition thanked the Borough for all it 
does for bicyclists and for continuing efforts to keep State College as a bicycle friendly community. 
 
Consent items 

 
Mr. Rosenberger made a motion to approve the following consent items.  Mr. Filippelli seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously. 

 
 Approve vouchers for the month of March in the amount of $2,336,296.36. 
 Award the Borough’s portion of Contract #01-2012, College Avenue Water Line Replacement 

Phase 1, to Maxwell Trucking and Excavating, the low bidder, in the amount of $466,323.48.  
 Award Project #10-2012, the Allen Street ADA Ramp Upgrade & Rain Gardens Project, to John 

Nastase Construction, the low bidder, for a total amount of $78,186.90.    
 Approve the closing of South Garner Street, between East Calder Way and East College Avenue, 

on Sunday, April 29, 2012, from 12 p.m. to 6 p.m. for the Community Arts Collective’s Color of 
Music mural.  

 Approve the closing of East Fairmount Avenue, from South Garner Street to Clover Alley, on Friday, 
April 20, 2012, from 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. for the Greek Week Chariot Races sponsored by Red Bull 
with conditions.  

 Approve the use of the Municipal Building Community Room, Mayor Welch Plaza and Sidney 
Friedman Park and the closing of South Allen Street from Highland Alley to Foster Avenue, and 
Foster Avenue from Allen Street to Memorial Field, on Saturday, September 8, 2012, from 7 a.m. to 
9 p.m. for the The Light Step, Right Step Festival, which is sponsored by the State College Borough 
and Transition Town with one condition.  



General Policy & Administration 
 
Rezoning Request for 254 East Beaver Avenue – Ms. Dauler made a motion to authorize staff to publish a 
notice of intent to enact the ordinance to rezone 254 East Beaver Avenue at Council’s May 7 meeting.  Mr. 
Rosenberger seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Otto Grupp, Phi Kappa Sigma, said his fraternity and others are against the rezoning.  He said he received a 
letter from Phi Delta Theta and they are very interested in purchasing the property and re-colonizing here at this 
location.  Mr. Grupp said he was under the impression Council was going to vote this evening on whether or not 
to rezone the parcel.  Mr. Williams said Council will be voting at their May 7 meeting to either enact or not to 
enact.   
 
The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Proposed Rezoning of 323 West Fairmount Avenue – Mr. Filippelli made a motion to authorize staff to publish a 
notice of intent to enact the ordinance to rezone 323 West Fairmount Avenue at their May 7 meeting.  Ms. 
Dauler seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Morris said he would like to propose an amendment to that motion.  He recommended sending the proposed 
ordinance back to the Planning Commission to have them look for a reasonable way to enact the overlay 
proposal he suggested previously.   
 
Mr. Hahn said he would be voting against Mr. Filippelli’s motion. He suggested either a highway transitional or a 
mixed use overlay district to restrict student housing but to allow office uses.   
 
Mr. Daubert said Mr. Morris’ amendment could be made at the next meeting.  He could ask Council to turn down 
the rezoning and then make a second motion to refer it back to the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Williams said Mr. Morris’ motion could be made tonight.  The logic would be if the majority of Council is in 
favor of his motion, Council could vote tonight against publishing the notice of intent to enact. 
 
Mr. Morris made a motion to refer the rezoning request back to the Planning Commission for them to look into 
the possibility of an overlay to allow R-OA with the student housing distances strictly enforced.  He noted if the 
Planning Commission can find some other way to arrive at the same effect (allowing office use in the Highlands 
neighborhood and also keep the minimum distance between student homes); he would look favorably on it.  Ms. 
Klinetob seconded the motion.  The motion passed 6-1 with Mr. Daubert voting against the motion. 
 
Renaming of Fraser Plaza 

 
Mr. Morris made a motion to rename the space currently known as Fraser Plaza to Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. 
Plaza.  Mr. Hahn seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Hahn said he was in favor of renaming the plaza after Dr. King because he was part of the movement who 
redefined our society.  He noted that Dr. King held a mirror against the Soul of America. By demonstrating year 
after year, he helped keep the injustice near the forefront of our consciousness.  Dr. King was an eloquent and 
most identifiable spokesman.  Although there were multiple arrest and assassination attempts on his life, Dr. 
King was awarded the Nobel Peace Prize.  To attest his efforts, in the 2010 Census there were 1,600 African 
Americans, 4,100 Asians, and 800 mixed raise residents living in the Borough.  Mr. Hahn said these numbers 
were unthinkable years ago when his parent arrived. 
 
Ms. Dauler said she admires the work of Dr. King very much but she said she felt this was a time to recognize 
others, especially women who were also involved in the Civil Rights movement.  She said not to minimize Dr. 
King’s importance; she noted that there are 893 roadways or locations already named after Dr. King.  There is 
an opportunity for Council to recognize him but also do something to mark the contributions of many others. 
 
Mr. Daubert said Council has never named a building, street, or parking garage after a non local person or none 
after any national figure.  He said he was not in favor of changing that policy. 



 
Mr. Charles Dumas, 516 North Atherton Street, said the remarks Dr. King made when he visited State College 
many years ago were beautiful and touched his heart. He said it is high time the Borough recognize his efforts, 
not just for the liberation of color but for all Americans.  Mr. Dumas said Dr. King represents the best of all of us 
and he encouraged Council to vote in favor of renaming Fraser Plaza after him.   
 
Mr. Rosenberger said he was very much in favor of Mr. Hahn’s comments.  He said Dr. King represents the civil 
rights movement better than anyone else.   
 
The motion passed 5-2 with Ms. Dauler and Mr. Daubert voting against the motion. 
 
Noise Control Ordinance Amendments – Mr. Filippelli made a motion to recommend Council approve the noise 
control ordinance amendment.  Mr. Morris seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Daubert offered an amendment because he felt the $500 fine for the first offense was unrealistic.  He 
recommended changing Section 105 by changing the $500 fine to $250; the $750 fine to $500; and with a 
maximum of $1,000.  Mr. Hahn seconded the motion.     
 
Mr. Nicholas Rosette, 240 East Prospect Avenue, President of IFC Chapter Development, explained that the 
IFC has done a lot of work with the Borough to rid the animal house stigma.  He said he feels the noise control 
ordinance amendments are targeted to the Greeks more than other students.  He said he personally feels the 
men living in fraternities are less of a problem then the students who live elsewhere downtown.  Mr. Rosette 
said he finds it very difficult to add a subjective nature to these amendments.  He noted that noise meters pick 
up background sounds and asked if there was some other way to be objective because he said he does not 
think these amendments are fair to students. 
 
Ms. Goreham commented that she appreciated the IFC’s bold steps to not allow sanctioned events during State 
Patty’s Day weekend. 
 
Mr. Rosenberger said Council discussed the fine structure at a previous work session and Chief King made the 
point that by increasing the fines for such violations, it could work as a deterrent for those considering parties or 
other loud events.  He added that if the fine is $250 and not $500 the fine will more likely be upheld if a 
Magisterial District Justice is hearing the case.  Would a violation be more likely appealed with a higher fine?   
 
Ms. Dauler said when Council talked about the minimum fines, part of the difficulty has been that the minimum 
fine is so low for first offenses it really does not act as a deterrent to the behavior.  Is it not true that judges may 
tend to be influenced by the minimum rather than the maximum fine.  She noted that a lot of people have 
worked hard and have met with the magisterial district judges and legislators about increasing these fines, 
especially since they have not been changed in a long time.  She recommends sticking with the $500 minimum 
fine. 
 
Mr. Johan Zwart, 420 South Burrowes Street, said it is well known by the students that if a noise violation 
occurs, everyone just pitches in money to pay the violation.  He said the minimum should be $500 and the fine 
should only go up from there. 
 
Mr. Hahn asked for a clarification.  If Mr. Daubert’s amendment passes, the first offense would be between $250 
and $500 and the second offense would be between $500 and $1000 and the third offense would remain $1000 
without discretion.  He asked Chief King what is the current fine under the disorderly conduct statute.  Chief King 
said the fine is presently $300 maximum. 
 
The amendment passed 5-2 with Mr. Filippelli and Ms. Dauler voting against the amendment. 
 
Mr. Hahn asked Mr. Rosette why the IFC did not come forward during the public hearing two weeks ago to 
make their concerns known. 
 



Chief King said the existing ordinance has been enforced since he arrived thirty years ago.  The judgment is on 
the officers and whether or not the officer feels the noise they are hearing is unreasonable or not.  He added by 
switching from the disorderly conduct citation to a noise control violation the ordinance will be more enforceable 
locally. 
 
Mr. Rosette said he understands the Police Department’s procedures for noise violations.  In most cases, a 
fraternity is given a warning to turn down their music or quiet down their event.  If the property has been warned 
previously, it is the officer’s discretion on whether to issue another warning or go straight to a violation.  He said 
he disagrees with the subjectivity matter of it.  Fraternities often have more noise than regular rental houses.  
There are more tenants and the great number of people increase the chance they will make more noise.   
 
Mr. Daubert said one thing we should keep in mind is that people’s perception of a disorderly conduct citation is 
that someone did something terrible.  A noise violation means the person(s) cited were too loud.  A noise 
violation has a totally different connotation. 
 
Ms. Goreham said reproducing sound is very difficult and noise meters are difficult to use.  

 
Mr. Fountaine said recommendations on the noise ordinance came from a 2007 study on best practices.  Fort 
Collins, Colorado significantly reduced the number of noise violations they issued once the fines were 
increased.  Presently we do not have any data by housing type to indicate the type of properties where 
violations occur.  All housing types are likely to be cited.  Over this past weekend, several non fraternities were 
cited and we do not target fraternities. 
 
Mr. Rosenberger asked if noise is coming from a group of people walking down the street at 11 p.m. or later, 
can this ordinance be used in this circumstance. 
 
Chief King said if people walking down the street are shouting, yelling or screaming and an officer hears this 
during the early morning hours, it would be enforceable.  What is difficult is when a resident calls to complain 
about someone walking by their house yelling or screaming and by the time the officer arrives; these people 
may be home and no longer making noise outside. 
 
Mr. Hahn said he felt a $1000 fine was appropriate for repeat offenders.  Also, a larger fine would increase the 
incentive for someone to participate in a restorative justice program.  He said he shares Mr. Daubert’s and Mr. 
Rosenberger’s concerns for the potential for abuse; however, his concerns were mitigated by Chief King’s 
comments.  Mr. Hahn said he was impressed by Mr. McNally’s endorsement of the proposed ordinance.   
 
Mr. Filippelli said he is in favor of this ordinance.  He noted that Council has put strategic plans in place to 
mitigate problems in the neighborhoods and violations such as the noise ordinance continue to cut away at 
neighborhood’s protection.  If the fines are not increased there is no deterrent to stop the behavior.   
 
Mr. Morris said Council will know within the next year how this ordinance is working and Council can always 
come back and revisit the ordinance and recommend future amendments. 
 
Mr. Hahn asked if the current maximum fine is $300 is it true that the magistrates are not obligated to charge the 
maximum fine.  Would the magistrates be obligated to charge at least $250 and up to $1000 once we change 
the ordinance.  It is hopeful these amendments will create a positive effect and will indicate that the Borough is 
serious about enforcing these ordinances.   
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Noise Abatement Ordinance – Mr. Daubert made a motion to adopt the proposed ordinance as published.  Ms. 
Dauler seconded the motion.  There being no discussion, the motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
 
 



Request to Consider the Endorsement of Our Community Covenant 
 
Mr. Filippelli made a motion for Borough Council to endorse the “Our Community Covenant” and authorized 
Mayor Goreham to execute the covenant on behalf of the Borough of State College.  Mr. Morris seconded the 
motion. 
 
Ms. Goreham said beginning late last year she began receiving requests to talk about what we could do to 
reclaim the moral high ground when State College went under great attack and with all the scrutiny from the 
press.  Our Community Covenant is the result of these talks.  The first Community Day will be September 9, 
2012.   
 
Mr. Morris said he is happy to vote for this and to bring attention to the prevention and hearing of sexual abuse.  
He added that what happened to these children is an overriding tragedy. 
 
Ms. Goreham said there will be a covenant signing event being held at the Penn State Arboretum tomorrow at 
noon. 
 
Mr. Fountaine also pointed out that April is National Child Abuse Awareness Month. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Public Works 
 
Consider Adopting an Ordinance Ordaining Country Club Road, Ordaining Additional Right-of-Way for South 
Fraser Street, and Ordaining Changes to the Motor Vehicle and Traffic Ordinance – Mr. Rosenberger made a 
motion to approve the ordinance.  Ms. Dauler seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Rosenberger asked why Fraser Street at Calder Way is not aligned.  Are future changes coming.  Mr. 
Whitfield said he would take a look at it.  Fraser Street was a PennDOT project and we merely followed their 
guidelines.   
 
The motion passed unanimously.     
 
Projects Report/Open Agenda  
 
Mr. Hahn thanked Council members for completing their prioritization of Council’s 2012-2013 goals.  He asked 
the Manager when the goals would be ready for Council to review.  Mr. Fountaine said he believes he has 
everyone’s goals and he anticipates including them on Council’s May 7 agenda.   
 
Mr. Daubert said he would like to discuss the MPO membership at Council’s May 14 meeting.  
 
Items of Information 
 
Mayor’s Report – Mayor Goreham invited everyone to the signing ceremony at the Arboretum tomorrow at 
Noon. 
 
President’s Report – Mr. Hahn stated that Council will adjourn to an Executive Session following this meeting to 
discuss potential litigation. 
 
Regional Liaisons 
 
Executive Committee – Mr. Morris reported that the Executive Committee will meet tomorrow. 
 
Finance Committee – Mr. Rosenberger said the Finance Committee met last week but had nothing to report. All 
information discussed at their meeting will come before the General Forum. 
 



Human Resources Committee – Mr. Filippelli said the Human Resources Committee did not meet.   
 
Parks Capital Committee – Mr. Daubert said the Parks Capital Committee met last Thursday and discussed 
several items such as funding for recreation capital projects.  He said there are 28 projects for a total cost of 
$2,875,000 with an average cost of $100,000 for each project.  He also mentioned that some residents who live 
near the Oak Hall Regional Park expressed concerns.  The Parks Capital Committee also received a report on 
Phase I of the parks development project.   
 
Public Safety Committee – Mr. Hahn said the Public Safety Committee did not meet this month.   
 
Public Services and Environmental Committee – Ms. Klinetob reported that the Public Services and 
Environmental Committee held a meeting with Columbia Gas to discuss gas expansion in the Centre Region, 
with Marcellus shale being the changing factor.  She said there were lots of questions asked related to the 
maintenance of pipes, etc.  She felt there was a good, open and honest discussion about it. 
 
Transportation and Land Use/MPO Committee – Mr. Daubert said the Transportation and Land Use Committee 
discussed the progress on the project COG General Forum economic development assessment for the Centre 
Region.  They also reviewed drafts of the University Community Relations element of the Comp Plan and 
provided suggestions.  The Transportation and Land Use Committee also provided a lot of comments on the 
Community Services Facilities.  
  
Mr. Daubert reported that the MPO met on March 27 and received a recommendation from Ferguson Township 
to revise the CMPO local funding share formula.  He noted that these formulas have been in effect for a very 
long time.  The MPO, which is a committee of six people, none of which are from the Borough, recommended 
several items.  One was to not use the COG local funding share formula but base the share on the population, 
taxable assessment, or the earned income tax base.  Half would be based on the number of miles of roadway 
plus an equal amount for the population.  Using the proposed formula, the County’s share would increase as 
would the Borough’s share but all others went down, especially Ferguson Township’s share, which dropped by 
$15,000.  Mr. Daubert said this is totally unfair to the Borough and Council needs to talk about this in detail.   
 
Mr. Rosenberger said he would like to tell Council that when the Finance Committee reviewed the proposed 
CATA budget, although CATA’s budget is increasing 5%, the Borough’s share is going down this year. 
 
Mr. Hahn said CATA is planning to streamline some of its bus routes, which tends to help the Borough and it 
creates a more efficient usage of CATA resources.   
 
Staff/Committee Reports   - Mr. Fountaine reported that we recently hosted 50 city and county managers for the 
ICMA Northeast Regional meeting held recently in State College.  He said everyone was highly complimentary 
of our community.  In addition, the Borough recently provided a tour of our composting facility to 40 Turkish 
Mayors. 
 
Student Representative Report – Mr. McNally said he had nothing new to report.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sharon K. Ergler 
Assistant Borough Secretary   


